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The Knightsville Meeting House is a two-story, wood-frame, gable
roofed, ciapboarded structure, five bays wide and two bays deep. It
was constructed in the Federal style in 1807 and altered several times
during the-course of the nineteenth century. The building is set back
sixty feet from Phenix Avenue on a sparsely landscaped lot measuring
approximately one hundred by one hundred feet. The structure is both

- larger than and set back farther than the surrounding residential
buildings, which include one house in the Federal style and three in
the Greek Revival, a largely altered octagon house across the street, and
several contemporary homes. Behind the Meeting House -- which was also
built to serve as a church -- is the associated cemetery, which contains
gravestones from the nineteenth century. Overgrown and untended, it
occupies an approximately triangular lot, whose base is the northern
boundary of the meeting house lot. The property line opposite measures
only thirty-nine feet. The eastern boundary of the cemetery is 384 -

feet long and the western is 300. The cemetery is included in this
nomination. -

Set on a stone foundation, the original part of the building dates
two 1807 and measures forty feet by thirty-five feet; a two-story 1952
addition, two bays wide, sixteen Feet by thirty-five feet, adjoins the
building to the west see photograph 2 and sketch plan . The Meeting
I-louse is entered by two identical doorways placed symmetrically between
the windows. Each- door has a simple Greek Revival architrave with a
wide lintel supported by paneled pilasters. The three first-story win
dows have splayed lintels, as do the windows on the eas-t andnorth fa
cades. The original sash throughout the building were replaced in 1386
by two-over-two frosted panes surrounded by narrow strips of colored
glass. The western and northern facades aresheathed in modern compo
sition shingles, as were the other facades until 1964 when they were
recovered with wood clapboards, the original material.

The principal interior of the Meeting House - Church see photo
graph 4 and sketch plan is one open two-story space with a U-shaped
balcony or gallery around its west, east, and south sides. The balcony
is supported by chamfered posts and is reached by stairways in the
southern corners of the building. There.-Ire, presently, no pews in
the balcony, which is faced with wide boards painted to match the rest
of the walls and woodwork. The stair railing is composed o: simple
turned halusters and si ightlv more elahorate newel posts. A small
brick chimney abutting the inside of the west wall of this space Formerly
serviced heating stoves which have been removed.
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Three banks of pews extend toward a platform 9 feet by 16’ 18"
obably constructed in the early 20th century. Two rows of pews
re removed to accommodate it. The windows on the north facade, be
nd the platform, are all blocked mci uding a central window placed
ove the others to admit light for a pulpit which is no longer in place.
small room, 5’ x 8’ 6’’, stands ill the north-west cornerof the church,

id is entered by a doorway from the platform. There is an identical
om above it on the balcony level.

Interior decoration is sparse: very simple painted wainscoting
Lnes the first story walls and the central window in the north facade
is more colored glass than the others- -two narrow strips forming a
Lmple cross in its center. The pews are built of wide boards capped
Lth a simple molding. The lectern, pulpit and aitr are each simply
ish ionecl of wood and pa in te ci wh i te , ornamented with a central geld
ross. A Victorian cabinet five feet tall and five feet wide with a
rnice of Italianate pendants s talids against the west wall of the
ilcony.

The addition, which consists o F two large rooms on each floor,
es not intrude on the original interior space.
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The Knightsvi lie Meeting House is the oldest public building in
the City of Cranston, and one of the few remaining early structures in
the Knightsville section, which served as the civic center *of Cranston
almost continuously from the early 19th century until the l930s - The
building itself was the town meeting house from 1808 to 1854. It is
one of a small member of such meeting house type structures- built to
serve both civic and religious purposes still surviving in Rhode Island,
and with its splayed lintels, pilastered doorways, and colored glass
windows, represents the changing architectural tastesof the 19th
Century. The Knightsville Meeting House has throughout its history
served a variety of congregations - - from the original Six Principle
Baptists to present day Congregationalists -- and thus manifests
religious changes common to rural areas of Rhode Island.
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later the congregation split when Reverend Tatem advocated open communion.
Sixteen church members who lived at Natick, Rhode Island, formed a branch
of the church there in 1838. The church was reconsecrated in 1841
following general repairs and alterations. Although the years immediately
following were prosperous ones for the congregation, with 60 to 100
members attending the Sunday School and 84 members leaving to join the
Natick Church, the congregation succumbed to internal dissension shortly
thereafter and dwindled in size steadily throughout the l850s.
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year, the congregation found it necessary to become-abranch
Congregational Church in 1878. Tn the 1880s revival meetings flourished
at the church and in the last decade of the 19th Century student ministers
from Brown often preached here. The building was renovated in 1886
and "made more Comfortable" in 1899. To commemorate the 50th anniversary
of the Sunday School, the building was repainted inside and out and
electric lights installed, in 1914.
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of eastern Cranston in 1868,- town meetings were again held in Knightville,
although no longer at the meeting house.

Standing on a larger lot than most of its neighbors, today the
Knightsville Meeting House, though in need of Some restoration and
structural work, serves not only as a visual reminder of the times when
KnightsvilLo dominated thepolitics of Cranston, but also as a witness
to the various social and religious changes that occurred in rural
Rhode Island throughout the 19th century.
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"An Unpaid Pastor Who Runs the Whole Church" in the Boston Transcript,
November 30, 1929.

"New Face on Old Church" in Providence Journal, March 9, 1965.
"Officers of Congregational Church of Rhode Island recognize Church

at service" in Providence Journal, April 14, 1928.
"Pastor’s Study named in honor of Andrew Smith" in Providence Journal

April 27, 1964.
"Two Mission Branches Want to Separate" in the Providence Journal,

April 7, 1928.
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